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Financial Statements   

 
 
 
  
  
  
  
General financial statement presentation requirements  
  
IAS 1:10 Composition of a complete set of financial statements . 
  
IAS 1:10A Single or two statement approach  for profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income. 
  
IAS 1:49 Clear identification of financial statements from other information . 
  
IAS 1:51 Clear identification of each component of the financial statements, and 

various details of the reporting entity.  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
Entity specific disclosures  
  
IAS 1:51(a) Name of entity.  
  
IAS 1:138 Various details of the reporting entity.  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
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For the year ended 31 December 2019  
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Country of incorporation of parent company :  [Please provide details]  
 
Legal form :       [Please provide details]  
 
Principal activities:  The nature of the entities operations and its 

principal activities are set out in note 8  
 
Directors:  [Names] 
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A Layout (International) Grou p Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other  comprehensive income  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  

 

(Single statement approach, analysed by function of expense)  
 

 Note 2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000 
    
    
    
Revenue 4 175,278   166,517  
Cost of sales  (136,847) (131,084) 
Impairment loss  (896)  (166) 
  _______  _______ 
    
Gross profit   37,535   34,938  
    
Other operating income  5 1,283   1,203  
Administrative expenses  (9, 554) (9,919) 
Distribution expenses  (9,624)  (10,101) 
Other expenses  (9,180)  (7,594) 
  _______  _______ 
    
Profit from operations   10, 460  8,527  
    
Finance expense 9 (861) (842) 
Finance income 9 825  1,491  
Share of post-tax profits of equity accounted associates  660  600  
Share of post-tax profits of equity accounted joint v entures  100  110  
  _______  _______ 
    
Profit before tax   11,184   9,886  
    
Tax expense 10 (2,782)  (4,209) 
  _______  _______ 
    
Profit from continuing operations   8,402   5,677  
    
Profit/(loss) on discontinued operation, net of tax  11 374  (410) 
  _______  _______ 
    
Profit   8,776   5,267  
    
Other comprehensive income:     
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:     
Loss on property revaluation  14 (4,460)  (1,154) 
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension schemes  36 266  157  
Share of associates' other comprehensive income  -  412  
Valuation (losses)/gains on fair value through other comprehensive 
income equity investments  35 (349)  -  
Tax related to items that will not be reclassified  10 1,022   147  
  _______  _______ 
  (3, 521) (438) 
Items that  will  or may be reclassified to profit or loss:     
Valuation (losses)/gains on fair value through other compr ehensive 
income on debt instruments   

 
35 

 
(9) 

 
1,542  

Cash flow hedges  73  601  
Exchange gains arising on translation of foreign operations   2,084   1,024  
Tax relating to items that may be reclassified  10 (212) (536) 
  _______  _______ 
  1,936  2,631  
    
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax   (1,585)  2,193  
  _______  _______ 
    
Total comprehensive income   7,191   7,460  
  ________ _______ 
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Consolidated s tatement of profit or loss and other  comprehensive income  
(Single statement  approach ) (continued)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
General financial statement presentation requirements  
 
IAS 1:38-38A Minimum comparative information required (current and previous period).  
  
IAS 1:85 Present additional line items, headings and sub -totals as required.  
  
IAS 1:113 Notes to be presented in a systematic manner and cross referenced.  
  
  
  
Specific line item requirements  
  
IAS 1:81B Specific presentation required for the split of profit or loss and total 

comprehensive income between non-controlling interests and owners of the 
parent.  

  
IAS 33.4. 66 Specific disclosures presentation required for basic and diluted earnings per 

share. 
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 

(Single statement approach, analysed by function of expense)  
 

 
 Note 2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
    
    
    
Profit for the year attributable to:     
  Owners of the parent   8,296  4,919 
  Non-controlling interest   480 348 
  ______  _______ 
    
  8,776  5,267 
  _______ _______ 
    
Total comprehensive income attributable to:     
  Owners of the parent   6,711  7,112 
  Non-controlling interest   480 348 
  ______  _______ 
    
  7,191  7,460 
  _______ _______ 
    
Earnings per share attributable to the  
ordinary equity holders of the parent  12   
    
Profit or loss     
  Basic (CU cents)  11.06  7.20 
  Diluted (CU cents)  9.93 6.34 
  _______ _______ 
    
Profit or loss from continuing operations     
  Basic (CU cents)  10.57  7.17 
  Diluted  (CU cents)  9.50  6.83 
  _______ _______ 
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of profit or loss  
For the year ended 31 December 2019   

 

(Statement one of the t wo statement approach, analysed by nature of expense)  
 

 
 Note 2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
    
    
Revenue 4 175,278   166,517  
    
Other operating income  5 1,283   1,203  
    
    
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress  (4,690)  (3,927) 
Raw materials and consumables used  (104,263) (97,896) 
Employee benefit expenses 7 (32,263)  (36,632) 
Depreciation and amortisation expense   (13,436 ) (10,775) 
Research and development  (2,541)  (1,547) 
Other expenses  (8,908 ) (8,416) 
  _______  _______ 
Profit from operations   10, 460  8,527  
    
Finance expense 9 (861) (842) 
Finance income 9 825  1,491  
Share of post-tax profits of equity accounted associates  660  600  
Share of post-tax profits of equity accounted joint v entures  100  110  
  _______  _______ 
    
Profit before tax   11,184   9,886  
    
Tax expense 10 (2,782)  (4,209) 
  _______  _______ 
    
Profit from continuing operations   8,402   5,677  
    
Profit/(loss) on discontinued operation, net of tax  11 374  (410) 
  _______  _______ 
    
Profit   8,776   5,267  
  _______ _______ 
Profit for the year attributable to:     
  Owners of the parent   8,296   4,919  
  Non-controlling interest   480  348  
  _______  _______ 
    
  8,776   5,267  
  _______ _______ 
Earnings per share attributable to the     
ordinary equity holders of the parent  12   
    
Profit or loss     
  Basic (CU cents)  11.06   7.20  
  Diluted (CU cents)  9.93  6.34  
  _______ _______ 
    
Profit or loss from continuing operations     
  Basic (CU cents)  10.57   7.17  
  Diluted (CU cents)  9.50   6.83  
  _______ _______ 
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Consolidated statement of profit or  loss and other comprehensive income  
(Statement two of the two statement approach)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
General financial statement presentation requirements  
 
IAS 1:38-38A Minimum comparative information required (current and previous period).  
  
IAS 1:85 Present additional line items, headings and sub -totals as required.  
  
IAS 1:113 Notes to be presented in a systematic manner  and cross referenced. 
  
  
  
Specific line item requirements  
  
IAS 1:10A Under the two statement approach, the statement of comprehensive 

income must begin with profit or loss.  
  
IAS 1:82A Specific categorisation required for items within other comprehensive 

income.  
  
IAS 1:90, 91 Specific presentation for items of other comprehensive income (either pre -

tax or post -tax) required.  
  
IAS 21:52(b) Specific presentation for the net exchange differences recognised in other 

comprehensive income. 
  
IFRS 7:20(a)(ii) Specific disclosures for fair value through OCI  investments. 
  
BDO Comment The Group has chosen to make the disclosures required by IFRS 7:20(a)(ii) 

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.  
 
This analysis could have been given in a note  
 

  
  
IAS 1:81B Specific disclosures Separate presentation required for the split of total 

comprehensive income between non-controlling interests and owners of the 
parent.  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  

 

(Statement two of the t wo statement approach)  
 

 
 Note 2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
    
    
    
Profit   8,776   5,267  
    
Other comprehensive income :     
    
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:     
Loss on property revaluation  14 (4,460)  (1,154) 
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension schemes 36 266  157  
Share of associates' other comprehensive income  -  412  
Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified  10 965  147  
Valuation (losses)/gains on fair value through other 
comprehensive income equity investments  35 (349)  -  
Tax related to items that will not be reclassified  35 57  -  
  _______  _______ 
    
  (3, 521) (438) 
    
Items that will  or may be reclassified to profit or loss:     
Valuation (losses)/gains in fair value through other 
comprehensive income on debt instruments  

  
(9) 

 
1,542  

Cash flow hedges 35 73  601  
Exchange gains arising on translation of foreign  
  operations  2,084   1,024  
Tax relating to items that may be reclassified  10 (155)  (536) 
  _______  _______ 
    
  1,936  2,631  
    
Other comprehensive income  for the year, net of tax   (1,585)  2,193  
  _______  _______ 
    
Total comprehensive income   7,191   7,460  
  _______ _______ 
    
    
Total comprehensive income attributable to:     
  Owners of the parent   6,711   7,112  
  Non-controlling interest   480  348  
  _______  _______ 
    
  7,191   7,460  
  _______ _______ 
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of financial position  
As at 31 December 2019  

 
 

 Note 31 December  31 December   
  2019 2018  
  CU'000 CU'000  
     
     
Assets     
Current assets      
Inventories 23 21,194  19,425  
Trade and other receivables  26 16, 107 13,852  
Contract asset 4 367 600  
Fair value through other comprehensive income 
investments 

 
24 

 
448 

 
62 

 

Derivative financial assets  25 2,314  1,551  
Cash and cash equivalents 43 21,765  17,775  
  ______  _______  
     
  62, 195 53,265  
     
Assets in disposal groups classified as held for 
sale  

32 5,316  8,756  

  ______  _______  
     
  67, 511 62,021  
  ______  _______  
     
Non-current assets      
Property, plant and equipment  14 47,501  42,153  
Right-of-use assets 15 3,943  -  
Investment property  16 2,649  5,838  
Intangible assets 17 5,917  3,162  
Investments in equity -accounted associates 21 1,790  1,130  
Investments in equity -accounted joint v entures 22 383 283  
Fair value through other comprehensive income 
investments 

 
24 

 
3,125  

 
4,021 

 

Derivative financial assets  25 625 666  
Other receivables 26 692 700  
Deferred tax assets 31 471 365  
  ______  _______  
     
  67,746  58,318  
  ______  _______  
     
Total assets  135,257  120,339  
  _______ _______  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of financial position  
As at 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 Note 31 December  31 December   
  2019 2018  
  CU'000 CU'000  
Liabilities      
Current liabilities      
Trade and other payables 27 14,371  15,207  
Contract liability  4 213 364  
Loans and borrowings 28 7,548  7,990  
Lease liabilities  15 1,230  -  
Derivative financial liabilities  25 69 48  
Income Tax Payable  2,644  2,342  
Employee benefit  liabilities  29 2,817  1,696  
Provisions 30 256 375  
  ______  _______  
     
  29,148  28,022  
Liabilities directly associated with assets in  
  Disposal groups classified as held for sale 32 327 546 

 

  ______  _______  
     
  29,475  28,568  
     
Non-current liabilities      
Loans and borrowings 28 23,722  18,262  
Lease liabilities  15 3,506  -  
Derivative financial liabilities  25 43 56  
Employee benefit  liabilities  29 8,452  6,785  
Provisions 30 1,303  930  
Deferred tax liability  31 1,046  1,706  
  ______  _______  
     
  38,072  27,739  
  ______  _______  
     
Total liabilities   67,547  56,307  
  _______ _______  
     
NET ASSETS  67,710  64,032  
  _______ _______  
Issued capital and reserves attributable to  
  owners of the parent  34   

 

Share capital 33 7,568  7,428  
Share premium reserve  23,220  22,434  
Shares to be issued 38 4,492  -  
Capital redemption reserve   100 50  
Treasury and ESOP share reserve  (1,066)  (1,230)  
Convertible debt option reserve   503 559  
Revaluation reserve  892 4,326  
Equity investment  reserve   

549 
 

1,516 
 

Cash flow hedging reserve  (1,187)  1,080  
Foreign exchange reserve  6,519  4,435  
Retained earnings  22,533  20,327  
  ______  _______  
     
  64,1 23 60,925  
Non-controlling interest   3,587  3,107  
  ______  _______  
     
TOTAL EQUITY  67,710  64,032  
  _______ _______  

 
The financial statements on pages [X] to [Y] were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors on [date] and were signed on its behalf by:  [Name of director]   
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of cash flows  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  

 
 

 Note 2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
    
    
Cash flows from operating activities     
Profit for the year   8,776   5,267  
Adjustments for:     
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  14 9,753  9,165  
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  14 1,000   1,000  
Amortisation of right -of-use assets 15 528  - 
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets  17 410  410  
Impairment losses on intangible assets 17 100  500  
Change in value of investment property  16 2,837  1,478  
Finance income 9 (825)  (1,491) 
Finance expense 9 861  842  
Share of post-tax profits of equity accounted associates   (660)  (600) 
Share of post-tax profits of equity accounted joint ventures   (100)  (110) 
Profit on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax  11 (63)  (55) 
Loss/(gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment   50  (30) 
Share-based payment expense 37 1,464   1,695  
Income tax expense 10 2,782   4,209  
  _______  _______ 
    
  26, 913  22,280  
    
Increase in trade and other receivables   (2,057)  (5,843) 
Increase in inventories   (1,339)  (5,037) 
Decrease in trade and other payables  (408)  (2,899) 
Increase in provisions and employee benefits   2,593   2,023  
  _______  _______ 
    
Cash generated from operations   25,702  10,524  
    
Income taxes paid  (2,186 ) (1,367) 
  _______  _______ 
    
Net cash flows from operating activities   23,516   9,157  
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Consolidated s tatement of cash flows  (Investing and Financing activities)  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
General financial statement presentation requirements  
  
IAS 1:38-38A Minimum comparative information required (current and previous period).  
  
IAS 1:113 Notes to be presented in a systematic manner and cross referenced.  
  
IAS 7:10 Cash flows are to be classified as either operating, investing, or financing.  
  
IAS 7:21, 22 Cash flows are to be presented gross, unless they meet the criteria to be 

presented net.  
  
  
  
Specific line item requirements  
  
IAS 7:16 Examples of investing activity cash flows . 
  
IAS 7:17 Examples of financing activity cash flows . 
  
IAS 7:31 Present cash flows from interest and dividends as either operating, investing 

or financing activities  (must be consistent year -on-year).  
  
IAS 7:39 Aggregate cash flows from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other 

businesses are classified as investing activities.  
  
IAS 7:42A Cash flows from transactions r elating to changes in ownership that do not 

result in a loss of control are classified as financing activities.  
  
  
IAS 7.28 Present the effect of unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses on cash 

balances. 
  
IAS 7:45 Reconciliation (or reference to a reconciliation) of the cash balances 

presented in the statement of cash flows and the statement of financial 
position.  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of cash flows  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 

 Note 2018 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
    
    
    
Net cash flows from operating activities brought forward   23,239   9,157  
    
Investing activities     
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired  38, 39 (3,185)  (1,524) 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment   (17,886)  (4,950) 
Sale of property, plant and equipment   400  80  
Disposal of discontinued operation, net of cash  
disposed of 11 6,300   700  
Purchase of intangibles 17 (650)  (895) 
Purchases of fair value through OCI financial assets 24 (148)  (52) 
Sales of fair value through OCI financial assets  24 400  -  
Interest received   244  272  
Dividends from associates  284  43  
  ______  _______ 
    
Net cash used in investing activities   (14,241)  (6,326) 
    
    
Financing activities  43   
Issue of ordinary shares  776  - 
Purchase of ordinary shares for cancellation   (250)  (250) 
Purchase of treasury and ESOP shares  -  (1,230) 
Dividends paid to the holders of the parent  13 (6,463)  (4,980) 
Proceeds from loans and borrowings  10,800   16,427  
Repayment of loans and borrowings  (11,005 ) (6,305) 
Principal paid on lease liabilities (2018: principal paid on 
finance leases) 

15 (1,519)  (250) 

Interest paid on lease liabilities (2018: interest paid on finance 
leases) 

 (277)  (35) 

Interest paid on loans and borrowings   (789) (827) 
Interest rate swap net settlements   4,034   5,358  
  ______  _______ 
    
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities   (4, 693) 7,908  
    
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents   4,582   10,739  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   17,775   6,276  
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash equivalents  (592)  760  
  ______  _______ 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  43 21,765   17,775  
  _______ _______ 
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IAS 1:38-38A Minimum comparative information required (current and previous period).  

IAS 1:113 Notes to be presented in a systematic manner and cross referenced.  
  
  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Consolidated s tatement of changes in equity  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General financial statement presentation requirements  
  

  

Specific line item requirements  
  
IAS 1:106 
 

Specific line items and information required for the components of equity in 
the statement of changes in equity.  

  
IAS 1:106A Analysis of other comprehensive income by component of equity (or in the 

notes).  
  
IAS 1:107 Dividends recognised as distributions to owners and the related amount per 

share (or in the notes) .  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  
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 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
               
 
31 December 2018   

 
7,428  

 
22,434  

 
- 

 
50 

 
(1,230)  

 
559 

 
4,326  

 
848 

 
(1,046)  

 
4,435  

 
23, 121 

 
60,925  

 
3,1 07 

 
64,032  

 
Effect of adoption of IFRIC 23 (note 
44) 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

(117) 

 
 

(117) 

 
 

- 

 
 

(117) 
 
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 (net of 
tax) (note 44)  

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

(526) 

 
 

(526) 

 
 

- 

 
 

(526) 
 
1 January 2019  as restated  

 
7,428  

 
22,437  

 
- 

 
50 

 
(1,230)  

 
559 

 
4,326  

 
848  

 
(1,046)   

 
4,435  

 
22,478 

 
60, 282 

 
3,107  

 
63,389 

               

Comprehensive Income for the year                
Profit  - - - - - - - - - - 8,296 8,296  480 8,776 
Other comprehensive Income  
(Note 35) - - - - - - (3,434) (299) (141) 2,084 205 (1,585) - (1,585) 
               
Total comprehensive Income for  
  the year  - - - - - - (3,434)  (299)  (141)  2,084  8,501  6,711   480 7,191  
               

 
*Table continued to next page
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IAS 1:38-38A Minimum comparative information required (current and previous period).  

IAS 1:113 Notes to be presented in a systematic manner and cross referenced.  
  
  
  

 
 

Consolidated s tatement of changes in equity  (continued)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General financial statement presentation requirements  
  

  

Specific line item requirements  
  
IAS 1:106 
 

Specific line items and information required for the components of equity in 
the statement of changes in equity.  

  
IAS 1:106A Analysis of other comprehensive income by component of equity (or in the 

notes).  
  
IAS 1:107 Dividends recognised as distributions to owners and the related amount per 

share (or in the notes) .  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  

 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity  (continued ) 
For the year ended 31 December 2019  

 

 
               
Contributions by and distributions                
  to owners                
Dividends - - - - - - - - - - (6,463) (6,463) - (6,463) 
Issue of share capital 190 786 - - - - - - - - - 976  - 976  
Expiry of share options - - - - - (56) - - - - 56  - - - 
Shares to be issued as part of 
  the consideration in a business  

              

  Combination - - 1,698 - - - - - - - - 1,698 - 1,698 
Share based payment - - - - - - - - - - 878 878 - 878 
Issue of shares held by ESOP to    
  Employees 

- - - - 164 - - - - - 127 291 - 291 

Shares purchased for cancellation (50) - - 50 - - - - - - (250) (250) - (250) 
               

Total contributions by and  
  distributions to owners  140 786 1,698  50 164 (56)  - - - - (5,652)  (2, 870) - (2, 870) 
               

31 December 2019  7,568  23,220  1,698  100 (1,066)  503 892 549 (1,187)  6,519  25,327  64,12 3 3,587  67,7 10 
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IAS 1:38-38A Minimum comparative information required (current and previous period).  

IAS 1:113 Notes to be presented in a systematic manner and cross referenced.  
  
  
  

 
  

Consolidated s tatement of changes in equity  (continued)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General financial statement presentation requirements  
  

  

Specific line item requirements  
  
IAS 1:106 
 

Specific line items and information required for components of equity in the 
statement of changes in equity.  

  
IAS 1:106A Analysis of other comprehensive income by component of equity (or in the 

notes).  
  
IAS 1:107 Dividends recognised as distributions to owners and the related amount per 

share (or in the notes) .  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity ( continued ) 
For the year ended 31 December 2019  
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 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
               
31 December 201 7 7,428 22,434 - - - - 5,191 360 629 3,411 19,194 58,697 2,759 61,456 
               
Comprehensive Income for the 
year                
               

Profit  - - - - - - - - - - 4,919 4,919 348 5,267 
Other comprehensive Income  
(Note 35) - - - - - - (865) 1,156 451 1,024 427 2,193 - 2,193 
               
               

Total comprehensive Income for  
  the year  - - - - - - (865)  1,156  451 1,024  5,346  7,112  348 7,460  
               

 
 
 
*Table continued to next page  
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IAS 1:38-38A Minimum comparative information required (current and previous period).  

IAS 1:113 Notes to be presented in a systematic manner and cross referenced.  
  
  
  

 
 
 
 

Consolidated s tatement of changes in equity  (continued)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General financial statement presentation requirements  
  

  

Specific line item requirements  
  
IAS 1:106 
 

Specific line items and information required for components of equity in the 
statement of changes in equity.  

  
IAS 1:106A Analysis of other comprehensive income by component of equity (or in the 

notes).  
  
IAS 1:107 Dividends recognised as distributions to owners and the related amount per 

share (or in the notes) .  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity  (continued ) 
For the year ended 31 December 2019  

 
 

 
Contributions by and distributions                
  to owners                
               
Dividends - - - - - - - - - - (4,980) (4,980) - (4,980) 
Equity share options issued - - - - - 559 - - - - - 559 - 559 
Purchase of treasury shares by 
ESOP 

- - - - (1,230) - - - - - - (1,230) - (1,230) 

Share based payment  - - - - - - - - - - 1,017 1,017 - 1,017 
Shares purchased for cancellation  (50) - - 50 - - - - - - (250) (250) - (250) 
               

Total contributions by and                
  distributions to owners  (50)  - - 50 (1,230)  559 - - - - (4,213)  (4,884)  - (4,884)  
               

31 December 2018  7,428  22,434  - 50 (1,230)  559 4,326  1,516  1,080  4,435  20,327  60,925  3,107  64,032  
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
General requirement  for the Notes to the consolidated financial statements  
  
IAS 1:112 The Notes to the consolidated financial statements  include the following  

information : 
 

­  Basis of preparation  
 

­  Specific accounting policies  
 

­  Information required by IFRSs that is not presented elsewhere  
 

­  Information that is not presented elsewhere in the fin ancial 
statements, but is relevant to an understanding the financial 
statements . 

  
IAS 1:113 Notes are required to be presented in a systematic manner and cross 

referenced . 
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Note 2  Critical accounting estimates and judgements  
  

 
 
 
 

  
IAS 1:125 Disclose significant key assumptions concerning the future, and other key 

sources of estimation uncertainty.  
 

IAS 1:122 Disclose significant judgements management has made in applying t he 
entity's accounting policies.  
 

BDO Comment The areas identified and disclosed in response to the above requirement 
are specific to the financial statements of A Layout (International) Group  
Ltd .   
 
Other entities are likely to identify different areas where critical 
estimates and judgements have to be made and appropriate disclosure 
of these areas will be required.  
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Note 2  Critical accounting estimates and judgements  (continued)  
  
  
  
  
  
  
IFRS 13:93(g) Disclose the policy and processes for the valuation of level 3 fair value 

measurements  
  
IFRS 13.95 Policy for transfer of items between levels of the fair value measurement 

hierarchy.  
  
IAS 40:75(d) - (e) Disclose the methods and significant assumptions applied in  determining 

the fair value of investment property .  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
3. Financial instruments - Risk Management 

The Group is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks:  
 

­  Credit risk  
­  Interest rate risk  
­  Foreign exchange risk 
­  Other market price risk, and  
­  Liquidity risk.  

 
In common with all other businesses, the Group is exposed to risks that arise from its use of 
financial instruments.  This note describes the Group's objectives, policies and processes fo r 
managing those risks and the methods used to measure them.  Further quantitative information 
in respect of these risks is presented throughout these financial statements.  
 
There have been no substantive changes in the Group's exposure to financial instru ment risks, 
its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure 
them from previous periods unless otherwise stated in this note.  
 
(i) Principal financial instruments  
 
The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk 
arises, are as follows:  
 

­  Trade receivables  
­  Cash and cash equivalents 
­  Investments in quoted and unquoted equity securities  
­  Trade and other payables 
­  Bank overdrafts 
­  Floating-rate bank loans 
­  Fixed rate bank loa ns 
­  Interest rate swaps, and  
­  Forward currency contracts.   
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
3. Financial instruments - Risk Management (continued)  

 
Principal financial instruments (continued)  

 
(ii) Financial instruments by category  

 
Financial assets  

    Fair value through  
  Fair value through   Other comprehensive  
  profit or loss  Amortised cost   income  
  2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
        
 Cash and cash 

equivalents - - 21,765  17,775 - - 
 Trade and other 

receivables - - 16,306  13,990 - - 
 Derivatives 1,353  1,275 - - - - 
 Equity 

investments - - - - 3,5 02 4,001 
 Debt securities     71 82 
  _______  _______ _______ _______ _______  _______ 
 Total financial 

assets 1,353  1,275 38,071  31,765 3,573  4,083 
  _______  _______ _______ _______ _______  _______ 

 
Financial liabilities  

  Fair value through   
  profit or loss  Amortised cost  
  2019 2018 2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
      
 Trade and other 

payables 
- - 13,578  14,666 

 Loans and borrowings - - 31,270  26,252 
 Derivatives 112 104 - - 
  _______  _______ _______ _______ 
      
 Total financial 

liabilities  
112 104 44,848  40,918 

  _______  _______ _______ _______ 
 
(iii) Financial instruments not measured at fair value  
 
Financial instruments not measured at fair value includes cash and cash equivalents, trade and 
other receivables, trade and other payables, and loans and borrowings.  
 
Due to their short -term nature, the carrying valu e of cash and cash equivalents, trade and 
other receivables, and trade and other payables approximates their fair value.  
 
For details of the fair value hierarchy, valuation techniques, and significant unobservable 
inputs related to determining the fair value of loans and borrowings, which are classified in 
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, refer to note 28.  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
3. Financial instruments - Risk Management (continued)  

 
(iv) Financial instruments measured at fair value  

 
The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value is provided below.  

 
 31 December 2018  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  
  2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
        
 Financial assets        
   Derivative financial  

    assets (designated 
    hedge instruments)  - - 1,586  942 - - 

        
   Derivative financial  

    assets (fair value  
    through profit or loss)  - - 1,353  1,275 - - 

        
   Equity investments  2,072  2,369 - - 1,501  1,714 
  _______  _______ _______ _______ _______  _______ 
        
  2,072  2,369 2,939  2,217 1,501  1,714 
  _______  _______ _______ _______ _______  _______ 
        
 Financial liabilities        
   Derivative financial  

    liabilities ( fair value  
    through profit or loss)  - - 112 104 - - 

  _______  _______ _______ _______ _______  _______ 
        
  - - 112 104 - - 
  _______  _______ _______ _______ _______  _______ 

 
There were no transfers between levels during the period.  

 
The valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value 
measurement of level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, as well as the inter -relationship 
between key unobservable inputs and fair value, are set out in the t able below.  
 

 Financial  
Instrument  

Valuation techniques 
used 
 

Significant  
unobservable  
inputs  
(Level 3 only)  

Inter -relationship between 
key unobservable inputs 
and fair value  
(Level 3 only)  

 Derivative 
financial assets 
and liabilities  

[VALUATION TECHNIQUE] 
  

[DESCRIPTION] 
Not applicable.  Not applicable.  

 Equity  
investments  
 

[VALUATION TECHNIQUE] 
  

[DESCRIPTION] 
 

[PROCESSES AND 
POLICIES] 

[LIST SIGNIFICANT 
UNOBSERVABLE 
INPUTS USED] 

[DESCRIBE WHETHER INCREASES 
OR DECREASES IN SIGNIFICANT 
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS WOULD 
CAUSE AN INCREASE OR 
DECREASE IN FAIR VALUE] 

 
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the period.   
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
3. Financial instruments - Risk Management (continued)  

 
General objectives, policies and processes  
 
The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group's risk management 
objectives and policies and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has delegated 
the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation 
of the objectives and policies to the Group's finance function.  The Board receiv es monthly 
reports from the Group Financial Controller through which it reviews the effectiveness of the 
processes put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets.  The 
Group's internal auditors also review the risk management p olicies and processes and report 
their findings to the Audit Committee.  
 
The overall objective of the Board is to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible 
without unduly affecting the Group's competitiveness and flexibility.  Further detail s regarding 
these policies are set out below:  
 
Credit risk  
 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk  
from credit sales.  It is Group policy, implemented locally, to assess the credit risk of new 
customers before entering contracts.  Such credit ratings are taken into account by local 
business practices.  
 
The Risk Management Committee has established a credit policy under which each new 
customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group's standard payment 
and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group's review includes external ratings, 
when available, and in some cases bank references. Purchase limits are established for each 
customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring approval from the 
Risk Management Committee.  
 
The Risk Management Committee determines concentrations of credit risk by quarterly 
monitoring the creditworthiness rating of existing customers and through a monthly review of 
the trade receivables' ageing analysis. In monitoring the customers' credit risk, customers are 
grouped according to their credit characteristics. Customers that are  graded as "high risk" are 
placed on a restricted customer list, and future credit sales are made only with approval of 
the Risk Management Committee, otherwise payment in advance is required.    
 
Credit risk also arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial 
institutions. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with 
minimum rating "A" are accepted.  
 
Further disclosures regarding trade and other receivables, which are neither past due nor 
impaired , are provided in note 26. 
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
3. Financial instruments - Risk Management (continued)  

 
Cash in bank and short -term deposits  

 
A significant amount of cash is held with the following institutions:  

 
  31 December 2019  31 December 2018  
  Rating Cash at Bank Short-term  

Deposits 
Rating Cash at Bank Short-term  

Deposits 
   CU'000 CU'000  CU'000 CU'000 
        
 [INSTITUTION A]  A 10,946  3,091  A 10,078 2,380  
 [INSTITUTION B] AA 4,471  1,262  AA 3,359 793 
   ______  ______   ______ ______ 
 Note 43  15,417  4,353   13,437 3,173  
   _______  _______   _______ _______ 

 
The Risk Management Committee monitors the credit ratings of counterparties regularly and 
at the reporting date does not expect any losses from non -performance by the counterparties.  
For all financial assets to which the impairment requirements have not been applied, the 
carrying amount represents the maximum exposure to credit loss.  

 
Market risk  
 
Market risk arises from the Group's use of interest bearing, tradable and foreign currency 
financial instruments.  It is the ri sk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates (interest rate risk), foreign 
exchange rates (currency risk) or other market factors (other price risk).  

 
Interest rate risk  
 
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk from long -term borrowings at variable 
rate. It is currently group policy that between 50% and 75% of external group borrowings 
(excluding short -term overdraft facilities and finance lease payables) are fixed rat e 
borrowings.  This policy is managed centrally.  Local operations are not permitted to borrow 
long-term from external sources.  Where the Group wishes to vary the amount of external fixed 
rate debt it holds (subject to it being at least 50% and no more th an 75% of expected Group 
borrowings, as noted above), the Group makes use of interest rate swaps to achieve the desired 
interest rate profile.  Although the board accepts that this policy neither protects the Group 
entirely from the risk of paying rates in  excess of current market rates nor eliminates fully cash 
flow risk associated with variability in interest payments, it considers that it achieves an 
appropriate balance of exposure to these risks.  
 
During 2019 and 2018, the Group's borrowings at variable  rate were denominated in [CURRENCY 
B] and CU. 
 
The Group analyses the interest rate exposure on a quarterly basis. A sensitivity analysis is 
performed by applying a simulation technique to the liabilities that represent major interest -
bearing positions. Various scenarios are run taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of 
the existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on the simulations performed, 
the impact on profit or loss and net assets of a 100 basis -point shift (being the maxi mum 
reasonable expectation of changes in interest rates [basis point: 1/100 th of a percentage point])  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
3. Financial instruments - Risk Management (continued)  

 
Foreign exchange risk (continued)  

 
As of 31 December the Group's net exposure to foreign exchange risk was as follows:  

 
  Functional currency of individual entity  
  CU [CURRENCY B] [CURRENCY C] Other  Total  
  2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 
  CU000 CU000 CU000 CU000 CU000 CU000 CU000 CU000 CU000 CU000 
            
 Net foreign currency  

  financial assets  
  /(liabilities)  

          

 CU -  -  1,015   387  1,521   1,025  2,163   -  4,699   1,412  
 [CURRENCY B] 1,783   8,393  -  -  (1,446)  (700) -  1,399  337  9,092  
 [CURRENCY C] 1,929   2,205  200  1,001  -  -  -  82  2,129   3,288  
 Other 939  (236) -  -  (1,521)  -  -  -  (582)  (236) 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
            
 Total net exposure  4,651   10,362  1,215   1,388  (1,446)  325  2,163   1,481  6,583   13,556  
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
3. Financial instruments - Risk Management (continued)  

 
Foreign exchange risk (continued)  
 
The effect of a 20% strengthening of the [CURRENCY B] against CU at the reporting date on the 
[CURRENCY B]-denominated trade payables carried at that date would, all other variables held 
constant, have resulted in a decrease in post -tax profit  for the year and decrease of net assets 
of CU827,000 (2018: CU876,000).  A 20% weakening in the exchange rate would, on the same 
basis, have increased post-tax profit and increased net assets by CU629,000 (2018: CU684,000). 
 
The effect of fluctuations in exchange rates on the [CURRENCY B]-denominated trade payables 
is partially offset through the use of forward exchange contracts.  The effect of a 20% 
strengthening of the [CURRENCY B] against CU at the reporting date on the forward currency 
swaps carried at that date would, all other variables held constant, have resulted in an increase 
in post-tax profit for the year and increase in net assets of CU542,000 (201 8:  CU315,000). A 20% 
weakening in the exchange rate would, on the same basis, have decreased post -tax profit and 
decreased in net assets by CU457,000 (2018: CU394,000). 
 
Other market price risk  
 
The Group holds some strategic equity investments in other companies where those 
complement the Group's operations (see note 24). The directors believe that the exposure to 
market price risk from this activity is acceptable in the Group's circumstances.  
 
The effect of a 10% increase in the value of the equity investments held  at the reporting date 
would, all other variables held constant, have resulted in an increase in the fair value through 
other comprehensive income reserve and net assets of CU357,300 (2018: CU408,300). A 10% 
decrease in their value would, on the same basis , have decreased the fair value through other 
comprehensive income reserve and net assets by the same amount.  
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Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 

 
3. Financial instruments - Risk Management (continued)  

 
Liquidity risk  
 
Liquidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges 
and principal repayments on its debt instruments.  It is the risk that the Group will encounter 
difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.  
 
The Group's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its 
liabilities when they become due.  To achieve this aim, it seeks to maintain cash balances (or 
agreed facilities) to meet expected requirements  for a period of at least 45 days.  The Group 
also seeks to reduce liquidity risk by fixing interest rates (and hence cash flows) on a portion 
of its long -term borrowings, this is further discussed in the 'interest rate risk' section above.  
 
The Board receives rolling 12 -month cash flow projections on a monthly basis as well as 
information regarding cash balances and (as noted above) the value of the Group's investments 
in corporate bonds.  At the end of the financial year, these projections indicated that the Group 
expected to have sufficient liquid resources to meet its obligations under all reasonably 
expected circumstances and will not need to draw down on its agreed CU5,000,000 overdraft 
facility.  
 
The liquidity risk of each group entity is managed centrally by the group treasury function.  
Each operation has a facility with group treasury, the amount of the facility being based on 
budgets.  The budgets are set locally and agreed by the board in advance, enabling the Group's 
cash requirements to be a nticipated.  Where facilities of group entities need to be increased, 
approval must be sought from the group finance director.  Where the amount of the facility is 
above a certain level, agreement of the board is needed.  
 
The following table sets out the c ontractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual 
cash-flows) of financial liabilities:  

   Between  Between  Between   
  Up to 3  3 and 12  1 and 2  2 and 5  Over 
 At 31 December 2019  Months months  year  years 5 years  
  CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
 Trade and other  

  Payables 9,810  4,774  - - - 
 Loans and borrowings 1,900  5,871  14,958  5,485  7,314  
 Derivative financial  

  Liabilities  17 52 43 - - 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 Total  11,727  10,697  15,001  5,485  7,314  
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
   Between  Between  Between   
  Up to 3  3 and 12  1 and 2  2 and 5  Over 
 At 31 December 2018  Months months  year  years 5 years  
  CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
 Trade and other  

  payables 10,371 5,200 - - - 
 Loans and borrowings 4,046 12,505 6,616 5,408 7,211 
 Derivative financial  

  liabilities  12 36 56 - - 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 Total  14,429 17,741 6,672 5,408 7,211 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
3. Financial instruments - Risk Management (continued)  

 
Capital Disclosures 
 
The Group monitors "adjusted capital" which comprises all components of equity (i.e. share 
capital, share premium, non -controlling interest, retained earnings, and revaluation reserve) 
other than amounts in the cash flow hedging reserve.  
 
The Group's objectives when maintaining capital are:  
 
­  to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to 

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and  
­  to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pr icing products and services 

commensurately with the level of risk.  
 
The Group sets the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk. The Group manages its 
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions 
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital 
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.  
 
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to 
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt adjusted capital as defined above. 
Net debt is calculated as total debt (as shown in the consolida ted statement of financial 
position) less cash and cash equivalents.  
 
Due to recent market uncertainty, the Group's strategy is to preserve a strong cash base and 
achieve a debt -to -adjusted -capital ratio of approximately 10 -12% (2018: 12-15%). The objective 
of this strategy is to secure access to finance at reasonable cost by maintaining a high credit 
rating. The debt -to -adjusted-capital ratios at 31 December 2019 and at 31 December 2018 were 
as follows:  

 
  2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
    
 Loans and borrowings 

Lease liabilities  
31,270  

4,736  
26,252  

- 
 Less: cash and cash equivalents (21,765)  (17,775)  
  _______ _______ 
 Net debt  14,241  8,477  
  _______ _______ 
 Total equity  67,710  64,032  
 Less: Amounts in the cash flow hedging reserve 1,187  (1,080)  
  _______ _______ 
 Total adjusted capital  68, 897 62,952  
  _______ _______ 
 Debt to adjusted capital ratio (%)  20.67%  13.47%  
 

The increase in the debt to adjusted capital ratio during 201 9 resulted primarily from the 
adoption of IFRS 16 (note 44), which resulted in significant new liabilities being recorded in the 
statement of financial position  from 1 January 2019 onward.  In view of this change to the ratio 
as a consequence of IFRS 16, the Group has revisited its debt to adjusted capital ratio targ et 
going forward.   
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
As at 31 December 2019  

 
 
4. Revenue from contracts with c ustomers ( Continued)  
 
   Board Outdoor  All other   
 Year to 31 December 2018  Toys games games segments Total  
  CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
 Primary Geographic Markets      
 Country A 55,464 14,974 4,496 - 74,934 
 Country B 31,393 7,909 2,327 - 41,629 
 Country C 21,722 8,326 - 3,255 33,303 
 Country D 7,431 2,220 - - 9,651 
 Other 3,882 1,540 1,503 75 7,000 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
  119,892  34,969  8,326  3,330  166,517  
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 Product type       
 Goods 109,889 34,969 7,331 - 152,189 
 Design services - - - 3,330 3,330 
 Extended Warranties 10,003 - 995 - 10,998 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
  119,892  34,969  8,326  3,330  166,517  
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
 Contract counterparties       
 Retailers 63,683 33,255 2,972 - 99,910 
 Wholesalers 48,765 - 1,191 - 49,956 
 Direct to consumers (online)  7,444 1,714 4,163 - 13,321 
 B2B (services) - - - 3,330 3,330 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
  119,892  34,969  8,326  3,330  166,517  
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 Timing of transfer of goods 

and services 
     

 Point in time (delivery to 
customer premise including 
bill and holds)  102,566 20,637 7,513 - 130,716 

 Point in time (delivery to 
port of departure)  15,609 12,333 813 - 28,755 

 Point in time (delivery to 
port of arrival)  1,717 1,999 - - 3,716 

 Over time  - - - 3,330 3,330 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
  119,892  34,969  8,326  3,330  166,517  
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 Revenue included above 

related to material rights  1,636  823 75 - 2,534  
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
5. Other operating income  

 
Other operating income arises mainly from the investment properties the Group maintains  (see 
note 16). Since this is not considered to be part of the main revenue generating activities, the 
Group presents this income separately from revenue.  

 
  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
 Rental income from investment property  1,190 1,120 
 Other 93 83 
  _______ _______ 
    
  1,283  1,203 
  _______ _______ 
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Note 6  Expenses by nature  
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
IAS 1:104 If  expenses are classified by function, disclos e additional information of 

expenses by nature . 
  
BDO Comment IAS 1:104 does not require a full analysis of expense by their nature . 

 
The level of detail included in note 6 on the adjacent page is greater than 
is strictly required.  
 

  
  
IAS 1:97 Separate disclose of material items of expense. 
  
IAS 20:39(b) Disclose the nature and extent of government grants separately from  other 

forms of government assistance. 
  
IAS 16:74(d) Disclose compensation relating to  items of property, plant and equipment 

that were impaired, lost , or given up. 
  
IAS 2:36(d) Disclose inventories recognised as an expense. 
  
IAS 2:36(e) Disclose the write -down of any inventories to fair value less costs to sell .  
  
IAS 36:126(a) Disclose impairment losses on non-financial assets, and the line item(s) within 

which they are  included.  
  
IAS 21:52(c) Disclose foreign  exchange differences (except from  financial instruments 

measured at fair value through profit or loss ).  
  
IAS 38:126 Disclose research and development costs. 
  
IAS 40:76(d) Disclose net gains/losses on investment properties  at fair value . 
  
IFRS 7:20(e) Disclose impairment loss es on financial assets by class. 
  
IAS 38:118(d) 
IAS 1:104 

Disclose amortisation of intangible assets , and the line item(s) within which 
they are  included.  

  
IAS 1:104 Disclose depreciation of property, plant and equipment .  
  
IAS 1:104 Disclose employee benefit expenses.  
  



 
 

 
 

85 

A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
6. Expenses by nature  
 
  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
    
    
 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in 

progress 
4,690  3,927 

 Write -down of inventory to net realisable value  293 476 
 Raw materials and consumables used 106,228  97,896 
 Employee benefit expenses (see note 7) 32,263  36,632 
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  9,753  9,165 
 Impairment of property, plant and equipment  1,000  1,000 
 Amortisation of intangible assets 1 410 410 
 Goodwill impairment charge 2 100 500 
 Amortisation of right -of-use assets3  

Research and development costs 
1,237  
1,451  

- 
1,547 

 Foreign exchange (gains) (1,744)  (984) 
 Operating lease expense:   
  - Plant and machinery  - 1,400 
  - Property - 2,100 
 (Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (50)  30 
 Fair value adjustments of investment property  2,637  1,228 
 Direct operating expenses arising from investment property  900 840 
 Transportation expenses 2,751  2,663 
 Advertising expenses 4,251  3,073 
 Other costs 515 1,055 

 
1* Amortisation charges on the group 's intangible assets are recognised in the administrative  

expenses line item in the [statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income /  
statement of profit or loss ].  

 
2 Goodwill impairment charges have been recognised in the other expenses line item in the 

[statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income /  statement of profit or loss ].  
 

3 Amortisation charges on the group's right -of-use assets are recognised in cost of sales 
(CU847,000) and administrative  expenses line item (CU390,000) in the [ statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income /  statement of profit or loss ].   
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Note 7 Employee benefit expenses 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
Employee benefit expenses 
  
IAS 19:25 IAS 19 does not require specific disclosures about short-term employee 

benefits.  
  
BDO Comment However the general requirements of IAS 1:97 require separate disclose of 

material items of expense. Materiality can be  based on either nature of the 
expense or amount.  
 
Therefore A layout has disaggregated its total employee benefit expense into 
the various categories of IAS 19, including short -term employee benefits.  
 

  
IFRS 2:51(a) Disclose total expense from share-based payment transactions.  
  
IAS 19:53 Disclose total expense for  defined contribution plans .  
  
  
Key management personnel compensation 
  
IAS 24:17 Disclose total key management personnel compensation in total.  

 
Disclose total key management personnel compensation disaggregated into 
the following categories:  

­  Short -term employee benefits  
­  Post-employment benefits  
­  Other long -term benefits  
­  Termination benefits  
­  Share-based payment.  
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For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
7. Employee benefit expenses  
 
  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
    
 Employee benefit expenses (including directors) comprise:    
    
 Wages and salaries 21,960  25,421 
 Short-term non -monetary benefits  1,171  1,356 
 Defined contribution pension cost  2,050  2,373 
 Defined benefit scheme cost (note 36) 3,132  2,283 
 Other long-term employee benefits  144 792 
 Share-based payment expense (note 37) 1,464  1,695 
 Social security contributions and similar taxes  2,342  2,712 
  _______ _______ 
    
  32,263  36,632 
  _______ _______ 

 
 

Key management personnel compensation  
 
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, including the directors of the company 
listed on page [X],  and the Financial Controller of the company.  
 

  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
 Salary 850 750 
 Other long-term benefits  3,228  - 
 Defined benefit scheme costs 1,953  2,147 
 Compensations for loss of office  10 10 
 Share based payment expense 1,464  1,695 
  _______ _______ 
    
  7,505  4,602 
  _______ _______ 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
8. Segment information  
 

Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives 
its revenues 

 
The Group has three main divisions: 

 
(a) Toys division - This division is involved in the manufacture and distribution of children 's toys 

and accounts for the largest proportion of the Group's business, generating 71% ( 2018: 67%) 
of its external revenues.   

(b) Board games division - This division is involved in the manufacture and distribution of board 
games and similar products and contributed  21% (2018: 20%) of the Group's external revenue 
and has seen steady growth over the past ten years.  

(c) Outdoor games division - This division is involved in the manufacture and distribution of 
outdoor games and sports equipment and is the smallest of the Gro up's three divisions 
contributing 5% (2018: 5%) to the Group's external revenues.  

 
Although the "outdoor games division" does not meet the quantitative threshold s to be a 
reportable segment , management has concluded that this segment should be reported 
separately, as it is closely monitored by the strategic chief operating decision -maker as a 
potential growth business segment and is expected to materially contribute to the Group's 
revenue in future.  
 
All other segments include the "sports equipment" and "sc ale models" divisions which, 
contribut e a relatively small amount of external revenue to the Group (1% each ( 2018: 1%)).   
Also included in other segments  in 2019 is the Group's Abstract Art division that has now been 
discontinued.  In May 2019, the Group  completed the disposal its Abstract Art division through 
the disposal of Klimt Limited, a company involved in the manufacture and sales of posters.  This 
division contributed 1% ( 2018:  6%) towards the Group's external revenues.  
 
Factors that management used to identify the Group's reportable segments  
 
The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different products and 
services. They are managed separately because each business requires different technology and 
marketing strateg ies.  
 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 
to the chief operating decision -maker. The chief operating decision maker has been identified 
as the management team including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer and the 
Finance Director.  
 
Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities  
 
The Group evaluates segmental performance on the basis of profit or loss from operations 
calculated in accordance with IFRS but excl uding non-recurring losses, such as goodwill 
impairment, and the effects of share -based payments. 
 
Inter -segment sales are priced along the same lines as sales to external customers, with an 
appropriate discount being applied to encourage use of group reso urces at a rate acceptable to 
local tax authorities.  This policy was applied consistently throughout the current and prior 
period.  
 
Segment assets exclude tax assets and assets used primarily for corporate purposes. Segment 
liabilities exclude tax liabil ities and defined benefit liabilities. Loans and borrowings are 
allocated to the segments based on relevant factors (e.g. funding requirements). Details are 
provided in the reconciliation from segment assets and liabilities to the group position.  
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
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8. Segment information  (continued)  

 
 2019  Board Outdoor  All other   
  Toys games games segments Total  
  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
       
 Revenue      
 Total revenue  140,222 36,808 8,764 6,757 192,551 
 Inter -segmental revenue (14,022) - - - (14,022) 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 Total revenue from  

  external customers  126,200 36,808 8,764 6,757 178,529 
       
 Discontinued operations - - - (3,251) (3,251) 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 Group's revenue per 

  consolidated statement  
  of comprehensive  
  income 126,200 36,808 8,764 3,506 175,278 

  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
       
 Depreciation  (6,570) (2,041) (460) (482) (9,553) 
 Amortisation  (321) (66) (16) (7) (410) 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
       
 Segment profit  9,530  2,758  694 339 13,321  
  _______ _______ _______ _______  
       
 Impairment of assets  (1,500) 
 Share-based payments  (1,464) 
 Share of post-tax profits of equity accounted associates   660 
 Share of post-tax profits of equity accounted joint ventures   300 
 Finance expense  (584) 
 Finance income  825 
 Segment profit included in discontinued operations  (374) 
   _______ 
    
 Group profit before tax and discontinued operations   11,184  
   _______ 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
8 Segment information  (continued)  

 
 2018  Board Outdoor  All other   
  Toys games games segments Total  
  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
       
       
       
 Revenue      
 Total revenue  133,213 34,969 8,326 14,782 191,290 
 Inter -segmental revenue (13,321) - - - (13,321) 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 Total revenue from  

  external customers  119,892 34,969 8,326 14,782 177,969 
       
 Discontinued operations - - - (11,452) (11,452) 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 Group's revenue per 

  consolidated statement  
  of comprehensive  
  income 119,892 34,969 8,326 3,330 166,517 

  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
       
 Depreciation  (6,250) (900) (1,400) (315) (8,865) 
 Amortisation  (150) (150) (50) (60) (410) 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
 Segment profit  7,767   2,091   573  522  10,953   
  _______ _______ _______ _______  

 
 Impairment of assets  (1,500) 
 Share-based payments  (1,695) 
 Share of post-tax profits of equity accounted associates  600  
 Share of post-tax profits of equity accounted joint ventures 331  
 Finance expense  (842) 
 Finance income  1,491  
 Segment loss included in discontinued operations   548  
   _______ 
    
 Group profit before tax and discontinued operations   9,886   
   _______ 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
8 Segment information  (continued)  

 
 2019  Board Outdoor  All other   
  Toys games games segments Total  
  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
       
 Additions to non -current  

  assets 16,552 7,448 2,359 682 27,041 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
 Reportable segment 

  assets 82,299 26,167 5,930 5,467 119,863 
  _______ _______ _______ _______  
       
 Investment in associates    537 537 
 Investment in joint  

  ventures      
 Fair value through  other 

comprehensive income  
  financial assets     3,573 

 Derivative financial  
  assets     2,939 

 Tax assets     211 
 Head office property      3,500 
      _______ 
       
 Total group assets     130,623 
      _______ 
       
 Reportable segment  

  liabilities  13,428 5,190 1,414 883 20,915 
  _______ _______ _______ _______  
       
       
 Loans and borrowings (excluding leases and overdrafts)   29,393 
 Defined benefit pension scheme  9,706 
 Derivative financial liabilities   112 
 Deferred tax liabilities   1,451 
 Employee benefits  1,563 
 Other unallocated and central liabilities   76 
   _______ 
    
 Total group liabilities   63,216 
   _______ 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
8 Segment information  (continued)  

 
 2018  Board Outdoor  All other   
  Toys games games segments Total  
  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
       
       
       
 Additions to non -current  

  assets 5,197 2,337 797 297 8,628 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
 Reportable segment 

  assets 54,463 22,712 10,933 21,514 109,622 
  _______ _______ _______ _______  
       
 Investment in associates    302 302 
 Investment in joint  

  ventures      
 Fair value through OCI 

  financial assets     4,083 
 Derivative financial  

  assets     2,217 
 Deferred tax assets     365 
 Head office property      3,750 
      _______ 
       
 Total group assets     120,339 
      _______ 
       
 Reportable segment  

  liabilities  13,490 5,527 1,552 819 21,388 
  _______ _______ _______ _______  
    
    
 Loans and borrowings (excluding leases and overdrafts)  24,534 
 Defined benefit pension scheme  7,552 
 Derivative financial liabilities   104 
 Deferred tax liabilities   1,706 
 Employee benefits  929 
 Other unallocated and central liabilities   94 
   _______ 
    
 Total group liabilities   56,307 
   _______ 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
8 Segment information  (continued)  

 
  External revenue by  Non-current assets  
  location of customers  by location of assets  
  2019 2018 2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
      
      
      
 [COUNTRY A] 78,874  74,934 27,786  25,567 
 [COUNTRY B] 43,820  41,629 17,540  17,290 
 [COUNTRY C] 35,056  33,303 11,803  10,559 
 [COUNTRY D] 10,500  9,651 5,764  4,902 
 Other 7,028  7,000 - - 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ 
      
  175,278  166,517 62, 893 58,318 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ 

 
Revenues from one customer total CU20,023,000 (2018: CU17,154,000).  This major customer 
purchases goods from the Toy, Board games and Outdoor games segments. 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
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9. Finance income and expense  
 

Recognised in profit or loss  
  2019 2018 
 Finance income  CU'000  CU'000  
    
    
    
 Interest received on bank deposits  200  250  
 Interest income on fair value through OCI financial assets 45  12  
 Dividend income on fair value through OCI  financial assets 34  45  
 Net gain on disposal of fair value through OCI  financial 

assets 
  transferred from equity  100  -  

 Net change in fair value of hedged item in a fair value  
  Hedge 

(250)  180  

 Net change in fair value of hedging instrument in a fair  
  value hedge 371  (180) 

 Net gains on derivatives classified as held for trading  70  - 
 Net foreign exchange gain 255  1,184  
  ______  _______ 
    
 Total finance income  825  1,491  
  _______ _______ 
    
    
 Finance expense    
    
 Interest expense on financial liabilities measured  

  at amortised cost  695 631 
 Interest expense on lease liabilities (2018: finance  leases) 

Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred  
  from equity  

277 
 

(200)  

123 
 

- 
 Dividends paid on redeemable preference shares 9  8 
 Ineffective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow  

  Hedges 50  50 
 Unwinding of discount on  provisions 30  30 
  ______  _______ 
    
 Total finance expense  584  842 
  _______ _______ 
    
 Net finance income recognised in profit or loss  241  649 
  _______ _______ 

 
 
 
The above financial income and expense include the following in respect of assets (liabilities) 
not at fair value through profit or loss:  

    
 Total interest income on financial assets  200 250 
 Total interest expense on financial liabilities  (660)  (719) 
  ______  _______ 
    
  (460)  (469) 
  _______ _______ 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
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10. Tax expense  
  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
    

(i)  Tax expense excluding tax on sale of discontinued 
operation and share of tax of equity accounted  
associates and joint ventures  

  

    
 Current tax expense    
 Current tax on profits for the year  3,041  2,036 
 Adjustment for under provision in prior periods  94 100 
  ______  _______ 
 Total current tax  3,135  2,136 
    
    
 Deferred tax expense  (recovery)    
 Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 31) (265)  2,142 
 Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets  - (200) 
  ______  _______ 
 Total deferred tax  (265)  1,942 
    
  ______  _______ 
  2,870  4,078 
  _______  _______ 
    
 Continuing and discontinued operations:    
    
 Income tax expense from continuing operations  2,782  4,209 
 Income tax expense/(credit) from discontinued operation  

  (excluding gain on sale) (Note 11) 88 (131) 
  ______  _______ 
  2,870  4,078 
  _______  _______ 
    
    
(ii)  Total tax expense    
    
 Tax expense excluding tax on sale of discontinued operation  

  and share of tax of equity accounted associates  and joint  
  ventures (as above) 
 

2,870  4,078 

 Income tax on gain on sale of discontinued operation  
  (Note 11) 

27 24 

 Share of tax expense of equity accounted associates  132 120 
 Share of tax expense of equity accounted joint ventures  60 66 
  ______  _______ 
  3,089  4,288 
  _______  _______ 
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Note 10  Tax expense (continued)  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
IAS 1:90 
IAS 12:81(ab) 

Disclose income tax relating to each item of other comprehensive income .  
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
10. Tax expense (continued)  

 
Tax on each component of other comprehensive income is as follows (see note 35):  

 
  2019 2018 
  Before   After  Before   After  
  tax  Tax tax  tax  Tax tax  
  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
 Loss on property  

revaluation  (4,460)  1,026  (3,434)  (1,154) 289 (865) 
        
 Actuarial gain on 

defined  benefit  
pension schemes  266 (61)  205 157 (39) 118 

        
 Valuation  

(losses)/gains  
on fair value 
through profit or 
loss investments  (258)  51 (207) 1,542 (386) 1,156 

        
 
Table continued to next page.  
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
10. Tax expense (continued)  

 
 
  2019    2018  
  Before   After  Before   After  
  tax  Tax tax  tax  Tax tax  
  CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
        
 Cash flow hedges:        
        
   (i) Gains  

  recognised  
  on  hedging  
  instruments  831 (256) 575 458 (95) 451 

        
   (ii) Transferred   

  to profit or  loss  
  for the year  (248 ) 50 (198) 275 (55) - 

        
   (iii) Transferred  

  to  initial  
  carrying amount  
  of hedged items  (610 ) - (610) (132) - - 

        
 Exchange gains  

on the translation 
of foreign 
operations  2,084  - 2,084  1,024 - 1,024 

        
 Share of 

associates' other 
comprehensive 
income  - - - 412 (103) 309 

  ______  ______  ______  _______ _______ _______ 
        
  (2,395)  810 (1,585)  2,582 (389) 2,193 
  _______  _______  _______  _______ _______ _______ 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
11. Discontinued operations  
 

In February 2018, the Group sold assets, as part of the Group 's disposal of its Abstract Art 
segment, for a cash consideration of CU700,000.  
 
In May 2019, the Group sold its 100% interest in Klimt Limited (completing  the disposal of the 
Abstract Art segment)  which is the only operation presented as discontinued oper ation in 2019.  
Klimt Limited was classified as held for sale in December 2018 (see note 32).  
 
The post-tax gain on disposal of discontinued operations was determined as follows:  

 
  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
    
    
 Cash consideration received  6,300  700 
 Other consideration received  - - 
  ______  _______ 
    
 Total consideration received  6,300  700 
  ______  _______ 
    
 Cash disposed of - - 
  ______  _______ 
    
 Net cash inflow on disposal of discontinued  operation  6,300  700 
  ______  _______ 
    
 Net assets disposed (other than cash):    
   Property, plant and equipment  (6,542 ) (621) 
   Intangibles (50) - 
   Trade and other receivables  (124) - 
   Other financial assets (40) - 
   Trade and other payables 546 - 
  ______  _______ 
    
  (6,210 ) (621) 
  ______  _______ 
    
 Pre-tax gain on disposal of discontinued operation  90 79 
    
 Related tax expense (27)  (24) 
  ______  _______ 
    
 Gain on disposal of discontinued operation  63 55 
  _______  _______ 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
11. Discontinued operations  (continued)  

 
The post-tax gain on disposal of discontinued operations was determined as follows:  
 

 Result of discontinued operations  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
 Revenue 3,251  11,452 
 Expenses other than finance costs  (2,800)  (12,000) 
 Finance costs  (52)  (48) 
 Tax (expense)/credit  (88)  131 
 Gain from selling discontinued operations after tax  63 55 
  ______  _______ 
    
 Profit/(loss) for the year  374 (410) 
  _______  _______ 
    
    
 Earnings per share from discontinued operations  2019 2018 
  CU CU 
    
 Basic earnings/(loss) per share 0.50  (0.55) 
 Diluted earnings/(loss) per share  0.42  (0.47) 
  _______  _______ 

 
Statement of cash flows  
 
The statement of cash flows includes the following amounts relating to discontinued operations:  
 

  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
 Operating activities  311 (465) 
 Investing activities  6,253  700  
 Financing activities  (5) (48) 
  ______  _______ 
    
 Net cash from discontinued operations  6,559  187  
  _______  _______ 
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Note 12  Earnings per share  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
IAS 33:70(a) Disclose a reconciliation of those amounts used as the numerator to profit or 

loss attributable to the parent entity .  
  
IAS 33:70(b) Disclose a reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares used as 

the denominator.  
  
IAS 33:70(c) Disclose a description of anti -dilutive  instruments that were not included in 

the calculation that could have a future significant impact basic earnings per 
share.  

  
IAS 33:70(d) Disclose transactions after reporting date that significantly impact the 

number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares (other than for 
capitalisation, bonus issue, share splits, or reverse share splits).  
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
12. Earnings per share  
 
  Continuing  Discontinued   Continuing  Discontinued   
  operations  operations  Total  operations  operations  Total  
  2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 
 Numerator  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
        
 Profit for 

the year  
  and 
earnings  
  used in 
basic EPS 7,922  374 8,296  5,329 (410) 4,919 

        
 Add 

interest on  
  
convertible 
debt  606 - 606 596 - 596 

        
 Less tax 

effect of  
  above 
items (158)  - (158)  (169) - (169) 

  ______  ______  ______  _______ _______ _______ 
 Earnings 

used in 
  diluted 
EPS 8,370  374 8,744  5,756 (410) 5,346 

  _______  _______  _______  _______ _______ _______ 
        
Table continued to next page.  
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
12. Earnings per share  (continued)  

 
  Continuing  Discontinued   Continuing  Discontinued   
  operations  operations  Total  operations  operations  Total  
  2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 
        
        
 Denominator  '000  '000  '000  '000  '000  '000  
        
 Weighted 

average 
  number of 
shares 
  used in 
basic EPS 74,980  74,980  74,980  74,280 74,280 74,280 

        
 Effects of:        
   Convertible 

debt  
 
 

10,000  

 
 

10,000  

 
 

10,000  

 
 

10,000 

 
 

10,000 

 
 

10,000 
   Employee 

share 
  options 1,500  1,500  1,500  - - - 

        
   Contingent 

share 
  
consideration 
on 
  business  
  
combinations 1,600  1,600  1,600  - - - 

  ______  ______  ______  _______ _______ _______ 
 Weighted 

average 
  number of 
shares 
  used in 
diluted  
  EPS 88,080  88,080  88,080  84,280 84,280 84,280 

  _______  _______  _______  _______ _______ _______ 
 

3 million employee options ( 2018: 1.5 million) have not been included in the calculation of 
diluted EPS because their exercise is contingent on the satisfaction of certain criteria that had 
not been met at 31 December.  The total number of options in issue is disclosed in note 37.   
 
Since Colour Sarl has achieved the earning criteria set out in the acquisition agreement, the 
contingently issuable shares are treated as outstanding and included in the calculation of diluted 
EPS. However, as Colour Sarl needs to maintain the level for a further 2 years  for the contingently 
issuable shares to become issuable, the calculation of basic EPS has not been affected.   
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
13. Dividends  
  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
 Final dividend of 6.9 CU cents (2018: 6.0 CU cents) per  

  Ordinary  share proposed and paid during the year relating  
  to the previous year's results  5,200  4,487 

    
 Interim dividend of 1.7  CU cents (2018: 0.7  CU cents) per  

  Ordinary  share paid during the year  1,263  493 
  ______  _______ 
    
  6,463  4,980 
  _______  _______ 

 
The directors are proposing a final dividend of 5.1  CU cents (2018: 6.9 CU cents) per share 
totalling CU3,824,000 (2018: CU5,200,000). This dividend has not been accrued in the 
consolidated statement of financial position.  
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14. Property, plant and equipment  
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 (i) Cost or valuation  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
        
 At 1 January 2018 29,250 35,897 4,000 2,530 2,000 73,677 
 Additions - 5,000 350 200 - 5,550 
 Acquired through 

  business combinations - 700 560 140 - 1,400 
 Disposals - (900) - - - (900) 
 Re-classified to  

  non-current   assets held  
  for  sale (4,907) (2,944) (1,472) (491) - (9,814) 

 Fair value gain (loss) 
  recognised in other  
  comprehensive income (1,154) - - - - (1,154) 

 Transfer from  assets  
  under construction  - 2,000 - - (2,000) - 

 Foreign exchange  
  movements 241 321 87 - - 649 

  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 At 31 December 2018  23,430 40,074 3,525 2,379 - 69,408 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
        
 At 1 January 2019 23,430  40,074  3,525  2,379  - 69,408  
 Reclassification due to 

adoption of IFRS 16 (note 
44) 

 
 

(220)  

 
 

(1,200)  

 
 

- 

 
 

(700)  

 
 

- 

 
 

(2, 120) 
 Additions 220 16,200 1,000  1,2 00 3,500  22,120 
 Acquired through 

  Business combinations 1,193  1,590  795 398 - 3,976  
 Disposals - (2,500)  (500)  - - (3,000)  
 Re-classified to  

  non-current  assets held  
  for  sale (2,672)  (1,603)  (802)  (267)  - (5,344)  

 Fair value gain (loss) 
  recognised in other  
  comprehensive income (4,460 ) - - - - (4, 460) 

 Foreign exchange 
  movements 156 513 184 276 - 1,129 

  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  
 At 31 December 2019  17, 647 53, 074 4,202  3,286  3,500  81,709  
  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  

 
 
Bank borrowings are secured on the Group's freehold land and buildings. Interest capitalised during 
the year amounted to CU120,000 (2018: CU110,000).  The net book value of assets under construction 
includes an amount of CU2,000,000 (2018: CU nil) relating to the Group's new head office, which is 
currently under construction. The cost of the buildings will be depreciated once the property is 
complete and  available for use.  The estimated cost to   completion of the property to which the 
Group is contractually committed, is CU1,000,000 (2018: CU3,000,000). 
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
14. Property, plant and equipment (continued)  
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  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
 (ii) Accumulated  

depreciation  and  
impairment  

      

        
 At 1 January 2018 - 18,562 1,500 1,000 - 21,062 
 Depreciation  300 7,179 800 886 - 9,165 
 Revaluations (300) - - - - (300) 
 Impairment losses - 1,000 - - - 1,000 
 Re-classified to  

  non-current  assets  
  held for sale  - (2,290) (818) (164) - (3,272) 

 Disposals - (850) - - - (850) 
 Foreign exchange 

  Movements - 300 100 50 - 450 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 At 31 December 2018  - 23,901 1,582 1,772 - 27,255 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
        
 At 1 January 2019 - 23,901  1,582  1,772  - 27,255  
 Reclassification due to 

adoption of IFRS 16 
(note 44) - 

 
(300)  - (420)  - (720)  

 Depreciation  200 8,015  705 833 - 9,753  
 Revaluations (200)  - - - - (200)  
 Impairment losses - 1,000  - - - 1,000  
 Re-classified to  

  non-current  assets  
  held for  sale - (1,190)  (425)  (85)  - (1,700)  

 Disposals - (2, 100) (150)  - - (2, 250) 
 Foreign exchange 

  Movements - 400 200 470 - 1,07 0 
  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  
 At 31 December 2019  - 29,726  1,912  2,570  - 34,208  
  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  
        
 (iii) Net book value        
  At 1 January 2018 29,250 17,335 2,500 1,530 2,000 52,615 
  At 31 December 2018 23,430 16,173 1,943 607 - 42,153 
  At 31 December 

2019 17, 647 23, 348 2,290  716 3,500  47,501  
  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  

 
The net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts held 
under finance leases for the period ended 31 December 2018: Land and buildings CU220,000; 
Plant, machines, and motor vehicles CU 900,000; Computer equipment CU280,000. For the 
period ended 31 December 2019, assets arising from leases where the Group is a lessee have 
been accounted for under IFRS 16. See note 44.  
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Note 15 Leases 
  
  
IAS 1:117(b) Disclose accounting policies that are relevant to understanding the financial 

statements (i.e. those for material items).  
  
IFRS 16:60 
 
 
 
IFRS 16:51 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If a lessee accounts for short-term leases or leases of low-value assets 
applying paragraph 6 of IFRS 16 (i.e. by not recognising a lease liability and 
corresponding right -of-use asset), disclose that fact .  
 
Disclose information that gives a basis for users of financial statements to 
assess the effect that leases have on financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the lessee.  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
15. Leases (continued)  

 
 
Right-of-Use Assets 
 

    
 

Land and 
buildings  

Plant, 
machinery  
and motor  
vehicles  

 
 
 

Total  
   CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
      
 At 1 January 2019  4,250 712 4,962  
 Additions  378 150 528 
 Amortisation   (1,438) (605) (2,043 ) 
 Effect of modification to lease terms   160 - 160 
 Variable lease payment adjustment   435 - 435 
 Foreign exchange movements  (78) (21) (99)  
   _______ _______ _______  
 At 31 December 2019   3,707  236 3,943  
   _______ _______ _______ 
      
      

 
Lease liabilities  
 

    
 

Land and 
buildings  

Plant, 
machinery  
and motor  
vehicles  

 
 
 

Total  
   CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
      
 At 1 January 2019  5,374 1,158 6,532  
 Additions  378 150 528 
 Interest expense  212 65 277 
 Effect of modification to lease terms   160 - 160 
 Variable lease payment adjustment   435 - 435 
 Lease payments  (2,022) (1,015) (3,037)  
 Foreign exchange movements  (105) (54) (159)  
   _______ _______ _______ 
 At 31 December 2019   4,432  304 4,736  
   _______ _______ _______ 
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Note 15 Leases (continued)  
 
BDO Comment A Layout (I nternational) Group has disclosed amounts in compliance with 

IFRS 16:53 (c), (d), (e), (f) and (i) in a table as required  by paragraph 54.  
Income from sub -leases is already disclosed in note 5 and, in accordance 
with IFRS 16:53, the disclosure is not dupl icated here.   A Layout 
(International) Group has not entered into any sale and leaseback 
transactions in the current or prior period.  

  
IFRS 16:55 Disclose the amount of its lease commitments for short-term leases 

accounted for applying paragraph 6 if the portfolio of short -term leases to 
which it is committed at the end of the reporting period is dissimilar to the 
portfolio of short -term leases to which the short -term lease expense 
disclosed applying paragraph 53(c) relates . 

  
IFRS 16:57 If a lessee measures right -of-use assets at revalued amounts applying IAS 16, 

disclose the information required by paragraph 77 of IAS 16 for those right -
of-use assets. 

  
BDO Comment A Layout does not measure right -of -use assets at revalued amounts and 

hence the se disclosures are not applicable.  
  
IFRS 16:58 Disclose a maturity analysis of lease liabilities applying paragraphs 39 and 

B11 of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures separately from the maturity 
analyses of other financial liabilities . 

  
BDO Comment  The same format has been used for disclosing the maturity of other 

liabilities in note 3 as the  disclosure might more appropriately be 
included within the same table in note 3 rather than separately within 
the separate lease note .  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  

 
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  

For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 
 

 
15. Leases (continued)  

 
  2019 
  CU'000  
   
 Short-term lease expense 1,313  
 Low value lease expense 600 
 Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in 

the measurement of lease liabilities  
65 

 Aggregate undiscounted commitments for short -term leases 410 
  _______ 

 
 
   Between  Between  Between   
  Up to 3  3 and 12  1 and 2  2 and 5  Over 
 At 31 December 2019  Months months  year  years 5 years  
  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
       
 Lease liabilities  745 2,140  1,079  415 357 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  

 
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  

For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 
 

 
16. Investment property (continued)  

 
(v) Fair value measurement (continued)  
 
The valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value 
measurement of investment property, as well as the inter -relationship between key 
unobservable inputs and fair value, is detailed in the table below.  
 

 Valuation Techniques 
used 
 

Significant unobservable inputs  Inter -relationship between 
key unobservable inputs and 
fair value  

  
[VALUATION TECHNIQUE 
#1] 
  

[DESCRIPTION] 
 

[PROCESSES AND 
POLICIES] 
 

 
[LIST SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE 
INPUTS USED] 

 
[DESCRIBE WHETHER INCREASES 
OR DECREASES IN SIGNIFICANT 
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS WOULD 
CAUSE AN INCREASE OR DECREASE 
IN FAIR VALUE. 
  

 
There were no changes to the valuation techniques of level 3 fair value measurements in the 
period. The fair value measurement is based on the above items highest and best use, which 
does not differ from their actual use.  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
17. Intangible assets  
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  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
 (i) Cost 

 
     

 At 1 January  2018 1,520 874 200 400 2,994 
 Additions - internally  

  Developed - 645 - 250 895 
 Acquired through  

  business combinations 283 - - 500 783 
 Foreign exchange rate       
   Movements 60 20 - - 80 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 At 31 December 2018  1,863 1,539 200 1,150 4,752 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
 At 1 January  2019 1,863  1,539  200 1,150  4,752  
 Additions - externally acquired  - - - 200 200 
 Additions - internally developed  - 450 - - 450 
 Acquired through business 

combinations 415 - 200 1,800  2,415  
 Foreign exchange rate 

  Movements 
180 40 - - 220 

  _______  _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 At 31 December 2019  2,458  2,029  400 3,150  8,037  
  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  
       
 (ii) Accumulated  amortisation 

and impairment  
     

       
 At 1 January 2018 - 200 150 320 670 
 Amortisation charge  - 300 50 60 410 
 Impairment losses 500 - - - 500 
 Foreign exchange movements - 10 - - 10 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 At 31 December 2018  500 510 200 380 1,590 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
 At 1 January  2019 500 510 200 380 1,590  
 Amortisation charge  - 300 60 50 410 
 Impairment losses 100 - - - 100 
 Foreign exchange movements - 20 - - 20 
  _______  _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 At 31 December 2019  600 830 260 430 2,120  
  _______  _______  _______  _______  _______  
       
 (iii) Net book value       
       
  At 1 January 2018 1,520 674 50 80 2,324 
  At 31 December 2018 1,363 1,029 - 770 3,162 
  At 31 December 2019  1,858  1,199  140 2,720  5,917  
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       

The Group has no contractual commitments for development costs ( 2018: nil) .  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
18. Goodwill and impairment  

 
The Group is required to test, on an annual basis, whether goodwill has suffered any 
impairment.  The recoverable amount is determined based on value in use calculations.  The 
use of this method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the determination of a 
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows.  
 
During the year, one of the operating units in the Board Games segment lost one of its key 
customers.  This had an adverse impact on the projected value in us e of the operation 
concerned and consequently resulted in an impairment to goodwill of CU76,000. The (pre-tax) 
discount rate used to measure the CGU's value in use was 9%. 
 
Further impairment adjustments to goodwill of CU24,000 were necessary due to business 
combinations in prior years (note 39).  
 
 
The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units (CGUs) as follows:  

 
  Goodwill carrying amount  
  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
   As restated  
   Note 39  
    
 Toys - Western Europe 637 395 
 Toys - Eastern Europe 796 705 
 Board games 361 92 
 Outdoor games  64 171 
  ______  _______ 
    
  1,858  1,363 
  _______ _______ 

 
The recoverable amounts of all the above CGUs have been determined from value in use 
calculations based on cash flow projections from formally approved budgets covering a five 
year period to 31  December 2024.  Other major assumptions are as follows:  

 
  Toys - Toys -   
  Western  Eastern Board Outdoor  
  Europe Europe games games 
 2019 % % % % 
      
 Discount rate 5 8 5 5 
 Operating margin 5 5 5 7 
 Growth rate*  2 6 2 3 
      
      
 2018     
      
 Discount rate 7 9 7 7 
 Operating margin 6 6 7 7 
 Growth rate*  3 10 2 4 

 
* The growth rate and operating margin assumptions applies only to the period beyond the 

formal budgeted period with the value in use calculation based on an extrapolation of the 
budgeted cash flows for year five.   
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
22. Joint ventures  (continued)  

 
The Group's share of Garden Plastic Toys Limited's contingent liabilities and capital 
commitments is CU nil  (2018:   CU nil ) and CU500,000 (2018: CU750,000), respectively.  
 
A supplier has licensed the use of certain intellectual property to Garden Plastic Toys Limited.  
The supplier has agreed to defer receipt of the amount due until Garden Plastic Toys Limited 
begins to sell a product being developed with the use of that int ellectual property, but not 
beyond 31 December 2019.  The joint venturers have jointly and severally agreed to und erwrite 
the amount owed.  At 31 December 2018, the cumulative amount owed by Garden Plastic Toys 
Limited to the supplier was CU645,000 (2018: CU321,000).  The Group's share of this liability is 
therefore CU215,000 (2018: CU107,000), although it could be liable for the full amount in the 
unlikely event that the other two  venturers were unable to pay their share.  
 
The joint venturers have each agreed to inject a further CU2,000,000 (2018: CU2,000,000) of 
capital if Garden Plastic Toys Limited successfully develops a prototype by 31 December 2019, 
the money to be used principally for marketing and Garden Plastic Toys Limited's  working 
capital needs.  

 
 
 
23. Inventories  
  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
 Raw materials and consumables 10,027  3,568 
 Work-in-progress 1,410  - 
 Finished goods and goods for resale 9,757  15,857 
  ______  _______ 
    
  21,194  19,425 
  _______ _______ 

 
Finished goods include an amount of CU95,000 (2018: CU84,000) carried at fair value less costs 
to sell.   
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
24. Fair value through other comprehensive income investments (continued)  

 
 Fair value through other comprehensive income financial 

assets include the following:  
  

    
  2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
 Quoted:    
   [Company Name]  1,358  1,204 
   [Company Name]  643 751 
   [Company Name]  71 50 
    
 Unquoted:    
   [Company Name]  929 1,205 
   [Company Name]  572 873 
  ______  _______ 
    
  3,573  4,083 
  _______  _______  

 
Fair value through other comprehensive income  financial assets are denominated in the 
following currencies:  
 

  2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
    
 CU 1,929  2,205 
 [CURRENCY B] 1,215  1,388 
 [CURRENCY C] 357 408 
 Other currencies 72 82 
  ______  _______ 
    
  3,573  4,083 
  _______ _______ 

 
One of the Group's strategic investments is a 23% interest in Quoits & Co Limited.  This 
investment  is not accounted for using the equity method (as an associate) as the Group does 
not have the power to participate in the company's operating and financial policies, evidenced 
by the lack of any direct or indirect involvement at board level and a contractual arrangement 
which enables the board to take all o perational and strategic decisions without consultation 
with shareholders owning less than 30% of the share capital of Quoits & Co Limited.  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
25. Derivative financial instruments (continued)    

 
The effects of the cash flow interest rate swap hedging relationships are as follows at  
31 December: 

    
  2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
    
 Carrying amount of derivatives  546  352  
 Change in fair value of designated hedging instrument  194  352  
 Change in fair value of designated hedged item  (194) (352) 
 Notional amount  10,000  9,000  
 Maturity date  30 June 2020  1 July 2019  
 Hedge ratio 1:1  1:1  

 
Fair value interest rate swaps  
 
The Group enters into fixed -to-floating interest rate swaps to hedge the fair value interest rate 
risk arising where it has borrowed at fixed rates  included in loans and borrowings .  
 
The ineffective portion recognised in finance income and expense in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income that arises from  fair value hedges amounts to CUnil ( 2018: 
CUnil). Gains and losses on the hedged instrument  attributable to the hedged risk amount to 
CU371,000 (2018: CU180,000).  Gains and losses on the hedged item attributable to the hedged 
risk amount to CU250,000 (2018: CU180,000).  Accumulated gains and losses on the hedged 
item attributable to the hedged risk amount to CU70,000 ( 2018: CU92,000). 
 
At 31 December 2019, the fixed interest rat es vary from 6.5% to 7.2 % (2018: 5.9% to 7.0%). 
Information on the maturities  of the loans is provided in note  28.  
 
The effects of the fair value interest rate swap hedging relationships are as follows at 31 
December: 

    
  2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
    
 Carrying amount of derivatives  712  341  
 Change in fair value of designated hedging instruments 371  341  
 Change in fair value of designated hedged item  (371) (341) 
 Notional amount  8,000  5,000  
 Maturity date  1 July 2020  1 July 2019  
 Hedge ratio 1:1  1:1  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
25. Derivative financial instruments (continued)  

 
Cash flow forward foreign exchange contracts  
 
Foreign exchange risk arises when individual group operations enter into transactions 
denominated in a currency other than their functional currency.  Where the risk to the Group 
is considered to be significant, Gro up treasury will enter into a matching forward foreign 
exchange contract with a reputable bank.  
 
The hedged forecast transactions denominat ed in foreign currency are expected to occur at 
various dates within the next 12 months. Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in 
equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31 December 2019 are recognised in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period or periods during which the 
hedged forecast transaction affects the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.  This 
is generally within 12 months from the end of the financial year unless the gain or loss is 
included in the initial carrying value of non -current assets through a basis adjustment 
(immediate transfer from cash flow hedging reserve to cost of asset) in which case recognition 
is over the lifetime of the asset as it is depreciated.  
 
The ineffective port ion recognised in cost of sales that arose from cash flow hedges amounts to 
a loss of CU300,000 (2018: CU 175,000). 
 
The effects of the cash flow forward foreign exchange contract hedging relationships are as 
follows at 31 December:  

    
  2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
    
 Carrying amount of derivatives  328  249  
 Change in fair value of designated hedging instruments   

79  
 

249  
 Change in fair value of designated hedged item   

(79) 
 

(249) 
 Notional amount  2,000  1,500  
 Maturity date  1 July 2020  1 July 2019  
 Hedge ratio 1:1  1:1  

  













 
 

 
 

175 

Note 2 6 Trade and other receivables (continued)  
 
IAS 24:18 If an entity has had related party transactions during the periods covered  by 

the financial statements, it shall disclose the nature of the related  party 
relationship as well as information about those transactions and  outstanding 
balances, including commitments, necessary for users to  understand the 
potential effect of the relationship on the financial  statements. These 
disclosure requirements are in addit ion to those in  paragraph 17. At a 
minimum, disclosures shall include:  

(a) the amount of the transactions;  
(b) the amount of outstanding balances, including commitments,  
and: 

(i) their terms and conditions, including whether they are  
secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided  in 
settlement; and  
(ii) details of any guarantees given or received;  

(c) provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of  
outstanding balances; and 
(d) the expense recognised during the period in respect of bad or 
doubtful debts due from related parties.  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued)  

 
 
26. Trade and other receivables (continued)  

 
Movements in the impairment allowance for trade receivables are as follows:  
 

  2019 2018 
  CU'000 CU'000 
    
    
 Opening provision for impairment of trade receivables  1,116   401  
    
 Increase during the year 1,341   881  
 Receivable written off during the year as uncollectible  (896)  (108) 
 Unused amounts reversed -  (58) 
  ______  _______ 
 Impairment loss during the year  445 715 
  ______  _______ 
    
 At 31 December 1,561   1,116  
  _______ _______ 

 
Credit risk for receivables from related parties  has not increased significantly since their initial 
recognition .   
 
Movements in the impairment allowance for receivables from related parties and loans to 
related parties for the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:  
 

  Receivables 
from  related 

parties  

Loans from 
related 
parties  

Total  

  CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
     
     
     
 Opening provision for impairment  1 1 2 
     
 Increase during the year  1 2 3 
  ______  ______  ______  
     
 At 31 December 2 3 5 
  _______ _______ _______ 

 
The movement in the impairment allowance for receivables from related parties and loans 
from related parties has been included in the administrative expense line in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income.   
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Note 2 7 Trade and other payables  
  
  
IAS 1:77 Disclose further sub-classifications of the line items in the statement of 

financial position.  
  
IFRS 7:25, 29(a) Disclose the fair value of each class of financial liability (unless carrying 

amount approximates fair value)  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
28. Loans and borrowings  
 

The book value and fair value of loans and borrowings are as follows:  
 
  Book Fair  Book Fair  
  value  value  value  value  
  2019 2019 2018 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
      
      
 Non-Current      
 Bank loans     
    - Secured 11,164  11,104  8,000 8,096 
    - Unsecured 2,000  1,988  1,000 1,012 
 Collateralised borrowings  2,748  2,742  - - 
 Convertible debt  

Redeemable preference 
shares 

7,682  
128 

7,636  
127 

8,086 
113 

8,183 
114 

 Finance leases (note  44) - - 1,063 1,064 
  _______  _______  _______ _______ 
      
  23,722  23,597  18,262 18,469 
  _______  _______  _______ _______ 
      
 Current      
 Overdrafts - - 100 100 
 Bank loans     
    - Secured 5,213  5,224  5,500 5,459 
    - Unsecured 800 802 600 595 
 Collateralised borrowings  1,535  1,574  1,235 1,279 
 Finance leases (note 44) - - 555 555 
  _______  _______  _______ _______ 
      
  7,548  7,600  7,990 7,988 
  _______  _______  _______ _______ 
      
 Total loans and borrowings  31,270  31,197  26,252  26,457  
  _______  _______  _______ _______ 
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Note 28 Loans and borrowings  (continued)  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
IFRS 7:31 Disclose information to enable  evaluation of the nature and extent of risks 

arising from financial instruments . 
  
IFRS 7:25, 29(a) Disclose the fair value of each class of financial liability  (unless carrying 

amount approximates fair value) .  
  
IFRS 7:14 Disclose the carrying amount of financial assets it has pledged as collateral .  
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A Layout (International) Group Ltd  
 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
28. Loans and borrowings (continued)  

 
The currency profile of the Group's loans and borrowings is as follows:  

 
  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
    
    
 CU 16,509  15,750 
 [CURRENCY B] 10,333  7,876 
 [CURRENCY C] 2,952  1,313 
 Other 1,476  1,313 
  ______  _______ 
    
  31,270  26,252 
  _______ _______ 

 
The rate at which CU denominated floating liabilities are payable is 4% ( 2018: 3%) above LIBOR.  
The rate at which [CURRENCY B] floating liabilities are payable is 4.5% ( 2018: 3.5%) above 
EURIBOR. 
 
 
Bank Borrowings  
 
The bank loans and overdrafts are secured by a fixed charge over the Group's freehold property 
and floating charges over the remaining assets of the Group (note 14).  
 
The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilit ies available at 31 December, for which all 
conditions have been met, as follows:  

 
 2019 Floating    
  rate  Fixed rate  Total  
  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
     
 Expiry within 1 year  5,000  - 5,000  
 Expiry within 1 and 2 years  - - - 
 Expiry in more than 2 years - 5,000  5,000  
  ______  ______  ______  
     
 Total  5,000  5,000  10,000  
  _______ _______ _______ 
     
 2018 Floating    
  rate  Fixed rate  Total  
  CU'000  CU'000  CU'000  
     
 Expiry within 1 year  8,000 - 8,000 
 Expiry within 1 and 2 years  - - - 
 Expiry in more than 2 years  - 10,000 10,000 
  _______ _______ _______ 
     
 Total  8,000 10,000 18,000 
  _______ _______ _______ 

 
The facilities expiring within 1 year are annual facilities subject to renewal at various dates 
during 2019 and 2018 respectively.  
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Note 28 Loans and Borrowings  (continued)  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
IFRS 7:17 Disclose the existence of those embedded derivative features within 

compound financial instruments . 
  

IFRS 7.25 Fair value of financial instruments not measured at  fair value.  
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
29. Employee benefit liabilities  

 
Liabilities for employee benefits comprise:  

  2019 2018 
  CU'000  CU'000  
    
    
    
 Defined benefit schemes (note 36) 9,706  7,552 
 Phantom share option scheme 1,263  678 
 Accrual for annual leave  300 251 
  ______  _______ 
    
  11,269  8,481 
  _______ _______ 
    
 Categorised as:   
    
 Current 2,817  1,696 
 Non-current  8,452  6,785 
  ______  _______ 
    
  11,269  8,481 
  _______ _______ 

 
 

Estimates and assumptions 
The costs, assets and liabilities of the defined benefit schemes operating by the Group are 
determined using methods relying on actuarial estimates and assumptions.  Details of the key 
assumptions are set out in note 36. The Group takes advice from independent actuaries relating 
to the appropriateness of the assumptions.  Changes in the assumptions used may have a 
significant effect on the consolidated statement of comprehensive in come and the consolidated 
statement of financial position.  
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Note 30 Provisions  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
IAS 37:84 For each class of provision, disclose:  

­  Opening and closing carrying amount  
­  Additional provisions  
­  Amounts used  
­  Reversals of unused amounts  
­  Increases in the discounted amount due to the passage of time   
­  Effect of any change in the discount rate.  
 
(Note that c omparative information is not required.  

  
IAS 37:85 For each class of provision, disclose:  

­  Description of the nature of the obligation  
­  The expected timing of future  outflows of economic benefits  
­  Uncertainties in the above  
­  Major assumptions used 
­  The amount of any expected reimbursement .  
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2019  (continued ) 

 
 
30. Provisions  

 
  Warranty   National  
  claims/    insurance  
  Right of Leasehold Legal on share  
  return  dilapidation  disputes options Total  
  CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 CU'000 
       
       
       
 At 1 January 

2019 
450 405 300 150 1,305  

       
 Charged to profit  

  or loss 200 160 100 50 510 
 On acquisition - - - - - 
 Other increases - - - - - 
 Utilised in year  (263) - - (38) (301) 
 Released in year - - - - - 
 Unwinding of 

  Discount 
- 30 - - 30 

 Foreign exchange 
   rate movements  

- 15 - - 15 

  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
 At 31 December  

  2019  387 610 400 162 1,559  
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
 Due within one 

year 
or less 216 - - 40 256 

 Due after more 
than one year 171 610 400 122 1,303 

  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 
       
  387 610 400 162 1,559 
  _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ 

 
 

For certain products the Group has incurred an obligation to exchange the item if it breaks 
prematurely due to a lack of quality or give the client a refund if he is not satisfied. Revenue 
for the sale of the products is recognised once the good is delivered, however, a provision 
based on previous experience is recognised at the same time (revenu e is adjusted for the 
amount of the provision).  
 
Leasehold dilapidations relate to the estimated cost of returning a leasehold property to its 
original state at the end of the lease in accordance with the lease terms.  The cost is 
recognised as depreciation of leasehold improvements over the remaining term of the lease.  
The main uncertainty relates to estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end of the 
lease. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 














































































































































































































